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A. INTRODUCTION

Brent Carter and Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center, P.S.
(“Plaintiff” unless otherwise indicated) come before this court presenting a
recitation of facts that is remarkably incomplete. Plaintiff fails to tell this
court that the challenged conduct of Respondent Suttell & Hammer, P.S.
occurred more than three years prior to the filing of this action, and
Plaintiff conducted no discovery at all while the action was pending in
King County Superior Court. Plaintiff appeals the summary judgment
dismissal of his claims, based on self-serving arguments that the
Washington Collection Agency Act and the Washington Consumer
Protection Act apply to Suttell & Hammer, while ignoring statutory
definitions and reported case decisions that say exactly the opposite.
Suttell & Hammer is a Washington law firm engaged in the collection of
debts, and it is not a “collection agency,” no matter how hard Plaintiff
attempts to paint that picture.

This is a nuisance lawsuit that never should have been filed. The
record demonstrates that Plaintiff’s theories of the case are untenable.
This court should affirm the dismissal of Suttell & Hammer.

B. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

Assignments of Error

Respondent Suttell & Hammer, P.S. does not assign error to the
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rulings of the King County Superior Court.
Issues Pertaining to Assignments of Error

Whether Suttell & Hammer, P.S. was properly dismissed as a party
to the action, when:

L. Plaintiff conducted no discovery at all and has no testimony
verifying his subjective belief regarding Suttell & Hammer’s law practice;

2. Contrary to Plaintiff’s argument, the alleged violations of
the Washington Collection Agency Act, abuse of process, and wrongful
garnishment all occurred more than three years prior to the filing of this
action, and no event acts to toll the statute of limitations;

3. Contrary to Plaintiff’s argument, the relevant definitions
from the Washington Collection Agency Act exempt lawyers from the
regulated conduct of “collection agency” and “out-of-state collection
agency,” thus making Plaintiff’s characterization of Suttell & Hammer as
a collection agency without legal support;

4. Contrary to Plaintiff’s argument, Washington decisional
law regarding the Washington Consumer Protection Act, beginning with
Short v. Demopolis, exempts lawyers engaged in law practice from the
regulated conduct of Washington businesses under the Act (with an
exception not pertinent here), thus making Plaintiff’s characterization of

Suttell & Hammer as a collection agency irrelevant; and

5240045



5. Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center, P.S. was dissolved
as a corporation five months prior to the filing of this action, and it was

never reinstated.

C. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. Suttell & Hammer successfully pursued
garnishment proceedings in Island County
Superior Court.

The genesis of this action was a collection proceeding filed in
Island County Superior Court by Suttell & Hammer. The law firm was
retained to collect amounts owed by Plaintiff to Citibank South Dakota,
N.A. In 2003 and 2004, Plaintiff was sued at least three times in Island
County. In those years, Plaintiff practiced as a chiropractor in Oak
Harbor, Washington.

Citibank South Dakota’s collection action of which Plaintiff
complains was filed on February 23, 2004 (Island County Cause No. 04-2-
00139-5). CP 156-58. Citibank South Dakota obtained a judgment
against Mr. Carter on October 18, 2004. CP 160-61. Thereafter, Suttell &
Hammer filed applications for writs of garnishment to collect the
judgment amount, and submitted supporting declarations of attorney
Catherine M. Kelley on November 18, 2004, and attorney William G.
Suttell on November 29, 2004. CP 165-66, 170-71. The writs of

garnishment were issued on November 18 and December 1, 2004. CP
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167-69, 172-74. Suttell & Hammer filed a Release of Writ of
Garnishment to garnishee defendant Pacific Northwest Bank on December
23, 2004. CP 175-76. Suttell & Hammer filed a Full Satisfaction of
Judgment on January 18, 2005. CP 178-79.

2. Plaintiff subsequently sued Suttell & Hammer
for allegedly improper collection activity.

Plaintiff Brent Carter first filed suit against Suttell & Hammer, P.S.
on November 30, 2005, in the U.S. District Court for the Western District
of Washington. That action, Carter v. Suttell & Associates, W. D. Wash.
Cause No. CV05-1990 MIJP, was dismissed by the federal court under
Fed. R. Civ. P. 41(b) for failure to prosecute on April 5, 2006. See
Appendix, Tab 1.

Mr. Carter filed this action in King County Superior Court, pro se,
for himself and on behalf of Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center, P.S.
on the last day of 2007. The latter entity was not represented by counsel
for the first several months of this action.

Plaintiff’s complaint alleges several claims, including violations of
the Washington Collection Agency Act (“WCAA”), abuse of process,
violations of the Washington Consumer Protection Act (“CPA”), and
wrongful garnishment. CP 3-16. Plaintiff identified Suttell & Hammer,

P.S. as being a law firm, and its principal, William G. Suttell, as being an
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attorney for Citibank. CP 4. Plaintiff incorrectly alleged that Suttell &
Hammer was required to be licensed as a collection agency pursuant to the
WCAA. CP 6. Plaintiff further alleged that Suttell & Hammer initiated a
collection action in Island County Superior Court against him, and filed a
motion for summary judgment against him. CP 5. Plaintiff specifically
alleged that Mr. Suttell and Catherine M. Kelley, attorneys at Suttell &
Hammer, filed declarations in support of applications for writs of
garnishment on December 1, 2004, and November 18, 2004, respectively.
CP 7. Plaintiff alleged that the declarations were incorrect, and filed to
“pressure him to pay the judgments.” CP 7-8. Plaintiff confusingly
alleged that Suttell & Hammer participated in a scheme to securitize credit
card receivables, so that collection of amounts owed to Citibank was
improper, because Citibank no longer owned the debt incurred by
Plaintiff. CP 10-14.

Suttell & Hammer filed an answer to Plaintiff’s complaint denying
liability on all causes of action and asserting the statute of limitations as
one of several affirmative defenses. CP 34-37. Suttell & Hammer
specifically alleged that Plaintiff’s action was frivolous. CP 37.

3. Plaintiff Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health
Center is defunct and not a proper party.

Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center, P.S. did not exist after
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August 1, 2007. The Washington Secretary of State administratively
dissolved the corporation for failure to file annual reports. See Appendix,
Tab 2.

Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center, P.S. was not a corporation
when Plaintiff sued on December 31, 2007. There is no evidence that
Brent Carter acted to reinstate Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center,
P.S. as a corporation at any time after this action was filed.

4, The Citibank Defendants and Suttell & Hammer
both obtained orders of dismissal in King

County Superior Court.
a. The Citibank Defendants were dismissed
in 2008.

On January 25, 2008, the Citibank Defendants filed a motion to
dismiss all of Plaintiff’s claims pursuant to CR 12. CP 29-30, 17-28.
Plaintiff did not oppose the motion.

On February 15, 2008, the trial court entered an order dismissing
the Citibank Defendants as parties to the action. CP 31, 32-33.

On March 12, 2008, Suttell & Hammer, P.S. filed its answer to
Plaintiff’s complaint. CP 34-37.

On June 30, 2008, the trial court issued an order to show cause for
non-compliance with the scheduling order. CP 38-40.

On July 23, 2008, attorney Jason Anderson filed a notice of

appearance for Plaintiffs Brent Carter and Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health

5240045



Center, P.S. CP 41-42.

On August 8, 2008, Mr. Anderson apparently obtained an ex parte
order to show cause why the trial court’s February 15, 2008 order
dismissing the Citibank Defendants should not be vacated. CP 45-46.

On August 21, 2008, Plaintiff filed a motion to vacate the order
dismissing the Citibank Defendants. CP 484-86, 49-58. Plaintiff filed a
declaration admitting that he did not respond to the Citibank Defendants’
motion to dismiss because he was not checking his mail while out of the
country. CP 73-74. The Citibank Defendants opposed Plaintiff’s motion,
noting it was “untimely attempt to revive claims that have already been
determined to be without merit.” CP 121-31.

On August 28, 2008, the trial court denied Plaintiff’s motion to
vacate the order dismissing the Citibank Defendants and entered a final
judgment as to those defendants. CP 488-89, 151-52.

Lee Smart, P.S., Inc. substituted as counsel on behalf of Suttell &
Hammer, P.S. on September 16, 2008.

b. Suttell & Hammer obtained dismissal on
summary judgment in 2009.

On January 12, 2009, Suttell & Hammer filed its Disclosure of
Possible Primary Witnesses under King County Local Rule 26. CP 412-

16.
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Suttell & Hammer filed its motion for summary judgment under
CR 56(c) on February 6, 2009. CP 443-45, 183-96, 153-82. Suttell &
Hammer showed that the WCAA exempted attorneys in the applicable
statutory definitions. CP 186-87. Suttell & Hammer further showed that
Plaintiff’s WCAA, abuse of process, and wrongful garnishment claims
were filed after the applicable statute of limitations. CP 187-90. Suttell &
Hammer then showed that Plaintiff’s CPA claim was subject to dismissal
because the Act’s decisional law exempts attorneys engaged in
professional activities for their clients. CP 190. Suttell & Hammer finally
showed that its affirmative defenses of res judicata, laches, and waiver all
applied to bar Plaintiff’s claims. CP 194-96.

On February 23, 2009, the day Plaintiff’s summary judgment
opposition pleadings were due, Plaintiff’s counsel moved to extend the
hearing date on Suttell & Hammer’s motion for summary judgment.
Plaintiff did not seek relief under CR 56(f). Over Suttell & Hammer’s
objections, CP 417-23, 424-30, 431-38, the trial court granted Plaintiff’s
motion. CP 441-42.

Plaintiff did not file his substantive opposition to the Suttell &
Hammer motion for summary judgment until March 4, 2009. CP 266-76,
197-265.

The discovery cutoff in this action occurred on April 27, 2009. By
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that date, Plaintiff had conducted no discovery, and had not filed a
Disclosure of Possible Primary Witnesses under King County Local Rule
26, in violation of the trial court’s scheduling order. CP 462-63.

On April 27, 2009, Suttell & Hammer moved to strike inadmissible
documents and factual averments submitted by Plaintiff in opposition to
the motion for summary judgment. Suttell & Hammer showed that
Plaintiff’s evidence failed to comply with ER 402, ER 602, and ER 802 in
multiple instances, and that there was an overall lack of sworn testimony
based upon personal knowledge. CP 446-56, 289-400, 480-82.

Also on April 27, 2009, Suttell & Hammer moved to file a
supplemental brief and declaration in support of its motion for summary
judgment. CP 457-61, 286-88, 401-07. Plaintiff did not oppose this
motion.

On April 28, 2009, Suttell & Hammer moved to exclude all trial
witnesses for Plaintiff, and any evidence of claimed damages, based on
Plaintiff’s failure to comply with King County Local Rule 26 and the trial
court’s scheduling order. CP 471-78, 462-70.

On May 8§, 2009, the trial court held a hearing on all of Suttell &
Hammer’s pending motions. The trial court granted Suttell & Hammer’s
motion for summary judgment. CP 483, 408-11. Because Plaintiff’s

counsel admitted at the hearing that he had no evidence to back several of
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Plaintiff’s allegations, the trial court dismissed Plaintiff’s action with

prejudice. No written order was entered on the Suttell & Hammer motion

to strike, or the motion to exclude witnesses and evidence of damages.
Plaintiff filed this appeal on June 8, 2009.

D. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Plaintiff Brent Carter states no claim against Suttell & Hammer,
P.S. for numerous reasons, including (1) there is no admissible evidence
supporting Mr. Carter’s supposition that Suttell & Hammer is a “collection
agency,” (2) the applicable definitions of the Washington Collection
Agency Act specifically exempt attorneys from the regulated classes of
“collection agencies” and “out-of-state collection agencies,” (3)
Washington’s decisional law shows that a CPA claim does not lie against
attorneys engaged in the practice of law, and (4) the acts of the Suttell &
Hammer attorneys Plaintiff complains of all occurred more than three
years before the filing of this action, resulting in claims that are time-
barred. Summary judgment of dismissal was proper, and this court should
affirm that decision. This action should never have been filed, and
counsel for Plaintiff comes very, very close to making frivolous arguments
before this court.

Plaintiff Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center, P.S. states no

claim against any defendant because it was dissolved as a corporation five
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months prior to the filing of this action, and Washington law clearly states
that dissolved corporations may not bring civil actions.

E. ARGUMENT

1. The standard of review on summary judgment
supports the trial court’s dismissal of Suttell &
Hammer.

When reviewing an order granting summary judgment, the
appellate court engages in the same inquiry as the trial court. In summary
judgment proceedings, all facts and reasonable inferences are to be
considered in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party, and all
questions of law are reviewed de novo. Barr v. Day, 124 Wn.2d 318, 324,
879 P.2d 912 (1994). Once a party moving for summary judgment makes
an initial showing that there is no genuine issue of material fact, the
nonmoving party must demonstrate the existence of such an issue by
setting forth specific facts which go beyond mere unsupported allegations.
Tokarz v. Frontier Fed. Sav. and Loan Assn., 33 Wn. App. 456, 466, 656
P.2d 1089 (1982).

The appellate court may reverse summary judgment only if the
evidence could lead reasonable persons to reach more than one
conclusion. On the other hand, it must affirm if there is no genuine issue
as to any material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as

matter of law. Soproni v. Polygon Apt. Partners, 137 Wn.2d 319, 325,
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971 P.2d 500 (1999). Alternatively, this court may affirm the dismissal on
any basis established in the record. LaMon v. Butler, 112 Wn.2d 193,
200-01, 770 P.2d 1027 (1989).
Here, Plaintiff’'s WCAA and CPA claims, and all subsidiary
claims, were properly dismissed as set forth below.
2. The challenged conduct of Suttell & Hammer,

P.S. occurred more than three years before the
action was filed.

Plaintiff’s WCAA, abuse of process, and wrongful garnishment
claims are all based on the filing, in November 2004, of the Suttell and
Kelley declarations in support of applications for writs of garnishment.
CP 165-66, 170-71. It is undisputed that this action was not filed until
December 31, 2007. More than three years passed before Plaintiff filed
this action, and the referenced claims are time-barred.

Suttell & Hammer disputes that the declarations filed in Island
County support any of Plaintiff’s claims. It is not necessary for the court
to analyze the content of the Island County pleadings, however, because
the WCAA, abuse of process, and wrongful garnishment claims all were
filed too late. Under established Washington law, the statute of limitations
is three years for each of the referenced claims. RCW 4.16.080(2); Nave
v. City of Seattle, 68 Wn.2d 721, 724, 415 P.2d 93 (1966) (abuse of

process action; “statute begins to run against such an action from the
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termination of the acts which constitute the abuse complained of”);
Watkins v. Peterson Enterprises, Inc., 57 F. Supp. 2d 1102, 1110 n.6 (E.D.
Wash. 1999) (concluding WCAA claims are subject to three-year statute
of limitations); G. W. Const. Corp. v. Professional Serv. Ind., Inc., 70 Wn.
App. 360, 366-67, 853 P.2d 484 (1993) (“Under RCW 4.16.080, a plaintiff
must commence a lawsuit within 3 years from the date its cause of action
accrues”); Westway Const., Inc. v. Benton County, 136 Wn. App. 859,
868, 151 P.3d 1005 (2006) (amended complaint raising new claim not
filed until four years after the alleged tortious conduct; new claim barred
by statute of limitations).

Plaintiff argues that the statute of limitations is extended until the
time that Suttell & Hammer filed a Full Satisfaction of Judgment in Island
County. App. Br. at 8, n.2; 9; 22. This argument plainly ignores settled
Washington law that the limitations period begins to run when Plaintiff
has knowledge of the predicate facts leading to a cause of action.
Cawdrey v. Hanson Baker Ludlow Drumheller, P.S., 129 Wn. App. 810,
817, 120 P.3d 605 (2005), rev. den., 157 Wn.2d 1004 (2006) (for the
limitations period to begin, a plaintiff need only be aware of the facts
underlying the claim); Easter v. American West Financial, 381 F.3d 948,
963-64 (9th Cir. 2004) (cause of action accrues when the plaintiff knows

or should know all the facts giving rise to the cause of action). The filing
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of a satisfaction of judgment does not alter the calculation of the
limitations period, nor is it a tortious act separately causing injury to
Plaintiff. Predictably, Plaintiff does not show any facts supporting his
argument that the limitations period did not begin to run until the Island
County action was completed. However, the filing of his federal court
lawsuit against Suttell & Hammer shows that he was aware of sufficient
predicate facts to initiate an action no later than November 30, 2005.
Waiting more than two years to re-file in King County Superior Court,
when the gravamen of Plaintiff’s claim was the content of the Suttell and
Kelley declarations, CP 7, resulted in expiration of the statute of
limitations.
3. The definitions of the WCAA clearly show that
law firms are not subject to the Act, and
Plaintiff’s effort to characterize Suttell &

Hammer, P.S. as a “collection agency” cannot be
supported by admissible evidence.

a. Suttell & Hammer is not relying on a
repealed section of the WCAA.

Plaintiff argues that Suttell & Hammer obtained summary
judgment by relying upon a “repealed” section of the Collection Agency
Act. App. Br. at 19. Plaintiff did not make this argument to the trial
court, and the argument is clearly based on a typographical error in Suttell
& Hammer’s motion for summary judgment. CP 186-87.

Suttell & Hammer relies upon, and has always relied upon, the
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definitions appearing in RCW 19.16.100(3)(c), and language from that
statute was obviously quoted in Suttell & Hammer’s motion for summary
judgment. According to the publication The Laws Relating to Collection
Agencies, issued by the Washington State Department of Licensing, the
definitions in RCW 19.16.100 were most recently passed by the
Legislature in 2002 and remain effective today. See Appendix, Tab 3 at 5-
6. Plaintiff cannot show that Suttell & Hammer intentionally argued, and
the trial court relied upon, a repealed statute in the underlying summary
judgment hearing.

b. The relevant definition in the WCAA

clearly exempts “lawyers” from the
regulated conduct in the Act.

Plaintiff admits that Suttell & Hammer is a law firm. App. Br. at
21. Plaintiff has also cited the effective provision of the WCAA, RCW
19.16.100(3)(c), which exempts attorneys from the ambit of the Act. CP
270-71.

As set forth in the WCAA, RCW 19.16.100(3)(c) states in
pertinent part:

(3) “Collection agency” does not mean and does not
include:

(c) Any person whose collection activities are
carried on in his, her, or its true name and are
confined and are directly related to the operation of
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a business other than that of a collection agency,
such as but not limited to:

... lawyers.

Plaintiff makes absolutely no showing that this definition does not
apply to all of the matters alleged in his complaint. Further, the statutory
definition does not say “lawyers, except those performing collection law
activities,” “lawyers, except those with credit card company clients,” or
“lawyers, except those working on Sundays.”

Further, no Washington court has issued a reported decision
indicating that collection law firms are subject to the WCAA and should
be treated in the same manner as “collection agencies” within the meaning
of RCW 19.16.100(3)(c). Suttell & Hammer notes that such a holding
would be to add requirements not found in the Act, and comprise a clear
invasion of the province of the legislative branch. Plaintiff’s argument
that Suttell & Hammer is a “collection agency,” App. Br. at 21, lacks a
factual basis under Washington’s evidence rules, and is merely
unsupported argument insufficient to defeat summary judgment. ER 602
(“A witness may not testify to a matter unless evidence is introduced
sufficient to support a finding that the witness has personal knowledge”);
Grimwood v. Univ. of Puget Sound, 110 Wn.2d 355, 359-60, 753 P.2d 517
(1988) (finding lack of any factual basis for plaintiff’s claim of age

discrimination; “does the affidavit state material facts, and, if so, would
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those facts be admissible in evidence at trial? If the contents of an

affidavit do not satisfy both standards, the affidavit fails to raise a genuine
issue for trial, and summary judgment is appropriate”).

c. Plaintif’s subjective interpretation of a

letter is insufficient evidence to convince

any court that Suttell & Hammer is a
“collection agency.”

Plaintiff also advances the ridiculous argument that Suttell &
Hammer is a “collection agency” based on a letter sent by Dennis Nissen,
on law firm letterhead, seeking payment of Plaintiff’s debts. App. Br. at
18. According to Plaintiff, his subjective characterization of the letter and
Mr. Nissen’s job title of “collection manager” is sufficient to actually
make Suttell & Hammer a “collection agency” requiring a state license
from the Department of Licensing, and also sufficient evidence to survive
Suttell & Hammer’s motion for summary judgment. Plaintiff’s
supposition about the nature of Mr. Nissen’s work and job title is
insufficient to create a genuine issue of material fact, especially as
Plaintiff did not depose Mr. Nissen, and did not take testimony from
Suttell & Hammer under CR 30(b)(6). Had he done so, Plaintiff would
have discovered that Mr. Nissen was employed at a law firm and not a

collection agency.! Unilateral declarations that a debt collector is liable

! Suttell & Hammer believes Plaintiff did not seek this testimony in order to avoid
destroying his characterization that the law firm actually is a “collection agency.”
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based upon unsupported legal theories have been rejected by the appellate
courts. See Pettit v. Retrieval Masters Creditors Bureau, 211 F.3d 1057,
1059 (7th Cir. 2000) (rejecting plaintiff’s supposition as establishing
liability under the FDCPA; “We also reject her argument that her own
subjective belief that all debt collectors are credit bureaus results in
liability for Retrieval Masters™); McMillan v. Collection Professionals,
Inc., 455 F.3d 754, 758 (7th Cir. 2006) (“as a matter of law, we shall not
entertain a plaintiff’s bizarre, peculiar, or idiosyncratic interpretation of a
collection letter”); Discover Bank v. Ray, 139 Wn. App. 723, 727, 162
P.3d 1131 (2007) (plaintiff alleged violations of the FDCPA; “There is no
support for Mr. Ray’s allegations that Discover Bank violated the Act”).

4, Washington’s decisional law exempting claims

against attorneys engaged in law practice bars
Plaintiff’s claims under the CPA.

Plaintiff’s counsel asserts that Suttell & Hammer’s argument for
dismissal of the CPA claim has been “entirely eclipsed” by the
Washington Supreme Court’s decision in Panag v. Farmers Ins. Co. of
Wash., 166 Wn.2d 27, 204 P.3d 885 (2009). App. Br. at 23-25. Plaintiff’s
argument rests entirely on the erroneous position that Suttell & Hammer,
P.S. is a “collection agency,” regulated under the WCAA and CPA. This
Court is reminded there is no evidentiary basis, based upon personal

knowledge, that Suttell & Hammer is not a law firm. Plaintiff cannot
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obtain, and did not introduce, any such evidence to the trial court.

A good starting point is the language of Panag itself, from which
Plaintiff merely offers wholesale quotations. Plaintiff does not quote the
relevant language of Panag that goes to the issue in this appeal:

Attorneys who engage in bona fide collection activities on

behalf of their clients have no need to fear suit. Moreover,

this court has concluded that the CPA has no application to
the performance of legal services.

Panag, 166 Wn.2d at 56, n.14. This court should ponder why Plaintiff’s
complaint alleges that Suttell & Hammer is a law firm employed as
attorneys for Citibank, CP 4, yet he continues to advance the self-serving
argument that Suttell & Hammer is a “collection agency.” Plaintiff states
no viable claim under the CPA against Suttell & Hammer.

The Washington Supreme Court decided more than 25 years ago
that a CPA claim, based on the professional services of attorneys, did not
lie. Short v. Demopolis, 103 Wn.2d 52, 61-62, 691 P.2d 163 (1984)
(“claims . . . directed to the competence of and strategy employed by
plaintiffs’ lawyers, . . . amount to allegations of negligence or malpractice
and are exempt from the CPA”). This holding was reaffirmed by the same
court a mere 10 months ago in Michael v. Mosquera-Lacy, 165 Wn.2d
595, 604, 200 P.3d 695 (2009) (malpractice action against dentist

performing bone grafting procedure; “Dr. Mosquera-Lacy used her
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judgment and skills as a periodontist to finish the procedure. This is not
actionable under the CPA”). See also Ramos v. Arnold, 141 Wn. App. 11,
20, 169 P.3d 482 (2007) (claims directed at the competence of and
strategies employed by a professional amount to allegations of negligence
and are exempt from the CPA); Brotherson v. Professional Basketball
Club, 604 F. Supp. 2d 1276, 1296 (W.D. Wash. 2009) (granting motion
for summary judgment on CPA claim; “To show damages, however,
[plaintiffs] must show a CPA injury from which damages could flow. The
court finds that they have failed to do so0™); Kessler v. Loftus, 994 F. Supp.
240, 242 (D. Vt. 1997) (applying consumer protection acts to the actions
of attorneys, “many jurisdictions differentiate between the commercial,
entrepreneurial aspects of law and the legal, advisory, analytical aspects of
law, holding that their unfair trade practices acts apply only to the
former™).

The one exception applicable to attorneys under the CPA,
regarding the entrepreneurial aspects of the practice of law, is not alleged
in this action. Short, 103 Wn.2d at 61 (“how the price of legal services is
determined, billed, and collected and the way a law firm obtains, retains,
and dismisses clients” is subject to the CPA). The conduct of Suttell &
Hammer which underlies Plaintiff’s complaint, e.g. the alleged filing of

“misleading declarations to obtain a garnishment,” CP 8, is squarely
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within the practice of law and exempt from the CPA under Short and
Michael. See Panag, 166 Wn.2d at 56, n.14; CP 403-04. Plaintiff makes
no cogent argument to the contrary.

5. Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center, P.S.
cannot be a plaintiff in this action.

Plaintiff’s counsel asserts that Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health
Center may pursue claims in this action, because “no mention” is made of
it as an entity. App. Br. at 26, 27.

It is undisputed that Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center was
dissolved as a corporation on August 1, 2007. See Appendix, Tab 2. This
civil action was not filed until December 31, 2007.

It is well established that a dissolved corporation may not pursue
claims in a civil action. See Maple Court Seattle Condo. Assn. v.
Roosevelt LLC, 139 Wn. App. 257, 262, 160 P.3d 1068 (2007)
(“Dissolved business corporations are prohibited from affirmatively
maintaining an action”); Pacesetter Real Estate v. Fasules, 53 Wn. App.
463, 472, 767 P.2d 961 (1989) (corporation’s failure to apply for
reinstatement within the time permitted results in irrevocable dissolution;
failure to comply results in lack of standing to bring action); Follett v.
Clark, 19 Wn.2d 518, 521, 143 P.2d 536 (1943) (corporation dissolved by

secretary of state for nonpayment of annual license fees may be sued, but
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corporation in such plight cannot affirmatively maintain an action); see
also Chadwick Farms Owners Assn. v. FHC, LLC, 166 Wn.2d 178, 199,
207 P.3d 1251 (2009) (administratively dissolved limited liability
company has two years in which to wind up, including prosecuting an
action). Here, Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center was never a proper
party, and it cannot maintain claims in this action.?

6. To the extent the court believes the record is

incomplete, it should remand for entry of
additional orders by the trial court.

To the extent this court believes that the record does not
adequately show support for the dismissal of Suttell & Hammer, it should
order remand to the trial court for the limited purpose of entry of more
explicit orders granting the Suttell & Hammer, P.S. motion for summary
judgment, motion to strike, and motion to exclude witnesses and evidence
of claimed damages. Plaintiff cannot obtain evidence to defeat dismissal
of any of his claims, and there is no good reason the Citibank Defendants
or Suttell & Hammer should be forced to incur additional, needless
expense in defense of this lawsuit. The policy of Washington’s court rules
is to “secure the just, speedy, and inexpensive determination of every

action,” CR 1, and this action should be treated no differently.

? Plaintiff may argue that Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center should be allowed to
proceed as a party because it could be reinstated. Such an argument fails because more
than two years has passed since the corporation was dissolved.
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F. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, this court should affirm the dismissal of
Plaintiff’s claims. The claims against Suttell & Hammer under the
WCAA and for abuse of process and wrongful garnishment are time-
barred. Plaintiff also cannot show that Suttell & Hammer is a “collection
agency,” and the law firm is clearly exempt from the WCAA according to
its definitions. Similarly, Suttell & Hammer is a law firm engaged in the
collection of debts, and the exemption for attorneys under the CPA also
clearly applies. Oak Harbor Chiropractic Health Center, P.S. cannot
pursue claims in this action because it was dissolved as a corporation
before the action was filed, and it was never reinstated. None of
Plaintiff’s claims against Suttell & Hammer, P.S. were viable, and
dismissal by the trial court was proper.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 24th day of December,

2009.
LEE SMART, P.S., INC.
By: wa\ K- M
Joel E. Wright, WSBA No. 8625
William R. Kiendl, WSBA No. 23169
Of Attorneys for Respondent
Suttell & Hammer, P.S.
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APPENDIX
1. Docket report from Carter v. Suttell & Associates, W. D.
Wash. Cause No. CV05-1990 MJP, filed November 30, 2005.
2. Certificate of Administrative Dissolution of Oak Harbor
Chiropractic Health Center, P.S. dated August 1, 2007.
3. Washington State Department of Licensing publication,

The Laws Relating to Collection Agencies.
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RCW 19:16.100 Definitions. = -

‘Unless a different meaning is plainly required by the
context, the following words and phrases as: -
hereinafter used in this chapter shall have the .-
following meanings: ,

(D

@

<)

"Person" includes individiial ﬁr‘m
partnership, trust, Jomt venture assoc1at10n or
corporation.

"Collection agency" means and.inciudes:

(2) Any person directly or indirectly engaged -

in soliciting claims for collection, or .
collecting or attempting to collect claims
owed or due or asserted to be owed or due

another person

(b) Any:person who directly or mdrrectly
furnishes-or attempts to furnish, sells, or
offers to sell forms:represented to-be a
collection system or scheme intended or
calculated to be used to colect claims
even though the forms direct the debtor to
make paymentto the credrtor and even
though the forms may e or are actually
‘used by the creditor himself or herself in
his or her own:name; .

(c) Any. person who in att empting to collect or
in collecting’ h.ls' or her own c1a1m uses a
1e'oF any name dthier than his
or her own Wh1 h would 1nchcate to the -
deotor tnat a tmra person is collecung or
attemptmg to co]lect such claJm

"CoHectlon agency  does not mean and does
not include:

(a). Any individual engaged in. sohcmng
- claims for collection, or collecting or
attempting to collect claims on behalf of a
licensee under this chapter, if said
individual is an employee of the licensee;

" (b) Any individual collecting or atternpting to

(2008)

collect claims for not more than one
employer, if all the collection efforts are
carried on in the name of the employer and
if the individual is an employee of the -
employer;

)

19.16.100

(¢) Any person whose collection activities are
carried on.in his, her, or its true name and
are confined and are directly related to the
operation of a business other than that of a
collection agency, s_uch as but not limited
to; Trust companies; savings and loan

“associations; building and loan
associations; abstract companies doing an
escrow business; réal:estate brokers;
property management companies
collecting assessments, charges, or fines -
on behalf of condominium unit owners
associations, assoc1at10ns of apartment

' .owners, or homeowners' associations;
public officers acting in their official
capacities; . persons acting under court
order; lawyers; insurance companies; -
credit unions; loan or finance compames
mortgage ba.nks and banks

_(d) Any person who on behalf of another

PErson prepares or mails monthly or
periodic statements of accounts ‘due if all
- payments are made to'that other person
-and no other collection efforts are made by
-the person preparing the statements of
.~:account-. . S . -

(e) 2 "An "out- of-state collectlon agency

deﬂned in thJ.S chapter or

(H): Any person while acting, asa debt collector
for another person, both of whom are
related by common ownership or affiliated
by corporate control, if the person acting

" as a debt collector does so only for persons
to whom it is-so related or affiliated and if
- - the'principal business of the person is not .
_ the collection of debits.

"Out-of-state collection agency” means a
person whose activities within this state are
limited to collecting debts from debtors
located in this state by means- of interstate
communications, including teléphone, mail, or

" facsimile transmission, from the person's
- location in-another state on behalf of clients

located outside of this state, but does not
include any pcrson who is excluded from the

[Ch. 18.16 — page 1]}



(c) Has had any judgment entered against him
or it under the provisions of RCW -
19.86.080 or 19.86.090 involving a
violation or violations of RCW 19.86.020
and two years have not elapsed since the .
entry of the final judgment: PROVIDED,
‘That in no event shall:a license be issued™
unless the terms of such judgment, if any,
have been fuilly complied with:

‘PROVIDED FURTHER, That said -
jadgment shall not be:grounds.for denial,

* ‘suspemnsion, nonrenewal; or revocation ofa

license unless-the judgment arises out of
and is based on dcts of the applicant,
owner, officer, director; managing -
employee, or licensee:while.actirig for or -
as a collection agency or any out-of-state
collection agency; - -

(d) Has petitioned for bankruptcy, and two'
years have not elapsed since the ﬁhng of
the pet1t10n, :

(e) Shall be msolvent in the sense: that the S
person’s liabilities exceed the person’s
assets or in the sense that the person
cannot meet obligations as they mature;

(f) Has failed to pay any civil, monetary .
penalty assessed in accordance with RCW
19.16.351 within ten days after the
assessment becomes ﬁna.l

() Has failed to comply Wlth or v101ated any
-provisions of this chapter or-any rule or .
regulation issued pursuant to, this chapter,
and two years have not elapsed since the .
occurrence of said noncomphance or
violation; or

(h) Has been found- by a‘court of competent
jurisdiction to have violated the federal
‘fair debt collection practices act, 15 U.S.C.

‘Sec. 1692 et seq., or the Washington state .

' consumer protection ‘act, chapter 19.86
RCW, and two yeéars have not elapsed
since: that ﬁndmg

Except as otherwise prov1ded in t}:us section;: any
person who is engaged in the collection agency

(2008)

19.16.120

business as of January 1, 1972, shall, upon filing the
application, paying the fees, and filing the

surety bond or cash deposit or other negotiable
security in lieu of bond required by this chapter, be
issued a license under this chapter. ,

The director shall immediately-suspend the license

or certificate of a person who has been certified
pursuant to RCW 74.20A.320 by the department of
social and health services as a person who is not in
compliance with a support order. ‘If the person has
continued to meet all other requirements for
reinstatement during the suspension;reissuance of-
the license or certificate: shall be-automatic upon the
director's.receipt of'a release.issued by the

- department of social and health:services stating that

the licensée is in compliance ‘with.the order. . [2002.c
86 § 266; 1997 ¢ 58 § 847; 1994.¢ 195 § 3;/1977 ex.s. ¢ 194.§
1; 1973 1st ex.5. ¢ 20 § 1; 1971 ex.s.; c253 §3.J

NOTES _
Effectwe dates - 2002. c 86 See note

followmg RCW 18 08. 340.

Part head.mgs not law - Severab111ty -- 2002
c 86: See RCW 18.235.902 and 18.235.903.

Short title -- Part headings, captlons table of
contents not law -- Exemptions and ‘waivers from _
federal law -- Conflict with federal requiremeénts =
Severability - 1997 ¢ 58: See: RCW 74:08A:900
through 74.08A.904. '

Effectwe dates - Intent - 1997 c 58 See

notes followmg RCW 74 20A 320

RCW 19.16. 130 Llcense—-Apphcatmn--Form--
Contents )

Every app11cat1on fora hcense shall be in wntmg,
under oath, and in the form prescnbed by the. .
director. '

Every application shall eontain such relevant
information as the director may require. The
applicant shall furnish the director with such
evidence as the director may reasonably require to
establish-that the requirements. and qualifications for

[Ch. 19.16 — page 3]



January first, a penalty for late payment:in an
amount-determined by the director as provided in
RCW 43.24.086 shall be assessed. If'the fee and the
penalty are not paid by January. thirty-first, it will be
necessary for the licensee to apply for a new branch
office certificate: PROVIDED, That no such new
branch office certificate shall be issued unless and
until all fees and penalties previously accrued under
this section have been paid.’ [1985 €7 §82; 1975 Ist
ex.s. 030§91 1971 exs. c253§6] o

RCW 19.16.160 ‘License and‘%rahch office .
certificate—~Form--Contents--Display.

Each Jicense and branch office: certxﬁcate when
issued, shall be in the form and size prescnbed by
the director and shall state in addruon to any other
matter requ1red by the d1rector ‘

(1) Thename of the 11censee :
(2) ‘The name under Wh.lch the hcensee wﬂl do
business;
(3) The address at which the collecuon agency
business is to be: conducted ahd
(4) “The numbet and expiration date of the -~
: 'license '6'r br"anch- dfﬁéé 'certiﬁcate L

A licensee shall chsplay his or its license ina
conspicuous place in his or its-principal-place of -
business and, if he or it conducts a branch office,
the branch office certificaté shall be conspicucusly
displayéd'in the braﬁch ofﬁce‘. ‘ S

Concuxrently with or priorto engagmg in‘any -
activity as a collection agency, as defined in this
chapter any person’ shall furnish to his or its clieat
or customer the number indicated 6n the- collectlon
agency license issued to him' pursuant to this
section. [1973 Istexs.c20 §2; 1971 ex.s. ¢253§7.] -

RCW 19.16.170 Procedure upon change of name
or busmess location.

Whenever a hcensee shall contemplate a change of
his or its trade name or a change in the location of
his or its pnnclpal place of business or branch

(2008)

19.16.150

office, he or it shall give written notice:of such
proposed change to the director. The director shall
approve the proposed change and issue a new.
license or a branch office certificate, as the case may
be, reﬂecting'th’e change. [1971 ex.5.c253 § 8.] .

RCW 19,16.180 Assxgnablhty of 11cense or
branch office certlficate

(1)~ Exceptasprovided in subsectlon (2) of this

-section, a license or branch office certificate
granted-under this: chapter 1s not a551gnable or
. transferable. - TR :

(2) Upon ‘the death of an individual licensee, the
' director shall hiave the right to transfer the
 license and any brarich ofﬁce certlﬁcate of the
decedent to'the personal representatlve of his
éstate ‘for the penod of the unexpu'ed term of
the hcense and such additional time; not to
- exceed:one year:from the date -of death of the’
licensee, as said ‘personal representative may
‘needin order to settle the deceased's estate or
sellithe collection agency.’ 1971 ex:s. ¢ 253 § 9.]

RCW 19.16.190. Surety bond requirements--
Cash deposit or. securities--Exception.

(1) ‘Except as lmuted by subsection (7) of this
section,’ cach apphcant shall, at the time of
app‘ymg for a license,; ﬁle with the' d;ector a
surety bond in the stim of five thousand
dollars. The bond shall Be’ annually renewable
on January first of each year, shall'be

- approved by the director-as to. form and
“content, and shall be executed by the applicant
as principal and by a surety company
" - authorized to.do businessin this state as
surety. Such bond shall fun to the state-of
Washington as.obligee for the benefit of the
- state and conditioned that the licensee shall
- faithfully and truly perform all agreements
entered into with the licensee's clients.or.
customerts and shall, within thirty days.after
_the close of each calendar month, account to
and pay to his client-or customer the net
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The director shall maintain-a record, available for -
public inspection, of all suits commenced under this
chapter upon surety bonds, or the cash orother
security deposited in lieu thereof.

In the event of a judgment being entered against the

deposit or security referred to in RCW 15.16.190(2),

the director shall, upon receipt of a certified copy of

a final judgment, pay said judgment from the

amount of the deposit.or security..-[1971 ex.s. ¢ 253 §
“11.] : R

.

RCW 19 16.210 Accountmg and payments by
licensee to customer.

A licensee shall within thirty days after the close of
each calendar month account in writing to his or its
customers for all collections.made, during that

calendar month and pay to. his or its customers the

net proceeds due and payable of all collectlons
made during that calendar month except that a
hcensee need not account to the customer for

(1) Court costs recovered wh1ch were prewot.sly
advanced by licensee or his or its attorney.

(2) Attorney's fees and mterest or other charges
incidental to the pnn01pal amount of the
obligation legally and properly belongmg to
the licensee, if such charges are retamed by
the licensee after the. pringipal - amount of the’
obhgatlon has been accounted for and remitted
to the customer. When the net proceeds are
less than ten dolla.rs at the end of any calendar
.month, payments may be deferred for.a period
not to.exceed three. months. [1971:ex.s. ¢:253 §
.12.] .

RCW 19.16.220 Accounting and payments by
customer to licensee.

Every customer of a licensee shall, within thirty
days after the close of each calendar month, account
and pay to his or its collection agency all sums
owing to the collection agency for payments
received by the customer during that calendar month
on claims in the hands of the collection agency. Ifa

(2008)
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customer fails to pay a licensee any sums due under
this section, the licensee shall,in addition to-other
remedies:provided by law, have the right to offset .
any moneys due the licensee under this section
against any moneys due customer under RCW

19.16.210. [1971 ex.s. ¢ 253 § 13.]

RCW 19. 16 230 Llcensee--Busmess office--.- -

.Records to be kept.

M Every licensee required | o keep and maintain
records pursuant to this sectr'on other than an
out-of-state collection agency, shall establish
and maintain‘a regular active business office

~ in the state of Washmgton for the ; purpose of
conductmg his or its collectlon agency
business. Said office must be opén to the
publlc during reasonable stated business
hours, and must be managed by a res1dent of (

~ the state of Washmgton

| . @ | ‘Every hcensee shall keep a record of all sums )

collected by him or it and all disbursements-
made by him or it. All such records shall be
kept at the business office referred to in
subsection (1) of this seetion, unless the
licensee is an out-of-stafe collection agency, in
whlch case the record shall. be kept at the
" business office listed on the licensee's license.
3) Licensees. shall maintain and preserve
-accounting records of collectionsand
payments. to customers. for a penod of four

years from the date of the last entry thereon.
[1994 ¢ 195 §6; 1987c 85 § 1 1973 lstexs c20§3;
1971 ex.s. c253§14] ot

RCW 19.16.240 Llcensee--Trust fund account——
Exceptmn '

agency; shall at all times mamtam a separate bank
account in this state in which all moneys collected
by the 11censee shall be depos1ted except that - '
negotiable instruments received may be forwarded
directly to.a customer. Moneys received must be.
deposited within ten days after posting to the book
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federal, state, county, or c1ty law enforcement
agency, or any other governmental agency,
while engaged in collection agency business.

Perform any act or acts, either directly or
indirectly, constit’uting'the‘practice of law.
Adveruse for sale or threaten to advertise for
sale any claim as 2 means: of endeavonng to
enforce payment. thereof or agreeing to do so
for the purpose of. sohc1t1ng claims, except
where the licensee has acqmred claims as an
assignee forthe benefit of créditors or' where
the licensee is acting undér ¢ourt order.

Use any name while engaged in the-making of
a demand for any claim other thamn the name
set forth on his or its current license issued
hereunder. i '

Give or send to  any debtor or cause:to bé

given or sent to-any debtor; any notice; letter,

message, or form which répresents-or implies
that‘a claim exists unless it shall mchcate in

. clear and legtble type

(2008)

(a). The name of the l1cen§ee and the 01ty,

street, and number at Wthh he is. hcensed
. to do business; ..

(b) The name of the’ ongmal cred1tor to ‘whom
the debtor owed the claim if such name is.

' known 10 the hcensee or employee "
PROVIDED That uDon written request of
the debtor,. the hcensee shall. make a
reasonable effort to obtam the'1 name of
such person and provrde tl‘us name to the
debtor; . :

(c) If the notice, letter, message, or- form is the
_ first notice to the debtor or:if the licensee
is attempting to collect a different amount
than indicated in his or its first notice to
_the debtor, an itemization, of the claim
asserted must be made including:

(i) Amount owing on the original obligation
at the time. it was rece1ved by the licensee
for collection or by assignment;

(ii) Interest or service charge, collection costs,
or late payment charges, if any, added to

)

19.16.250

- the original obligation by-the original
. creditor, customer or-assignor before it
was received by the licensee for collection,
if such information is known by the
licensee or employee: - PROVIDED, That .
“upon written request of the debtor, the
_11censee shall make 2 reasonable effort to
obtain information on such items and
. prov1de thls mformatlon to. the debtor;

(ul)Interest or service.charge, if any, added by

- the licensee or.customer or-assignor after
i. the obhgatlon was received by the licensee
for collection; - -

(iv)Collection costs, if any, that the licensee is
‘~ attemptmg to-collect;: .

_ (v) Attomeys fees, if any, that the licensee is

attemptmg to collect on his ¢ or its behalf or
on the behalf of a customer or assignor;

(v1)Any other charge or. fee that the licensee is -
attempting to collect on his.or its own
behalf or on the behalf of a customer or
ass1gnor

o

‘Communicate or threaten to commumcate the

existence of a claim to. 2 person other than one
who might be reasonably: expected to be liable
on the claim in any manner other than through

- * proper legal action, process;. or-proceedings

.except unider the following conditions:

(a) A licensee or employée ofa licensee may

inform a credit reporting bureau of the

..existence of a claim: .PROVIDED, That if

-the licensee or employee-of a licensee

.. reports aclaim to a credit reporting
- ‘bureau, the licensee shall upon receipt of

written notice from the debtor that any part
ofthe claim-is disputed, forward a copy of
.such written notice to: the cred1t reportmg
bureau;

(b) A licensee . or.employee in collecting or
attempting to collecta claim may
communicate the existence of a claim to a

" debtor's employer if the claim has been
reduced to a judgment; '
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(13)

(c) It is made vnth the debtor or spouse at his
- or her place of residence between the
hours of 9:00 p.m. and 7:30 a.m.

Communicate with the debtor through use of
forms or instrumerits that simulate the form or
appearance of judicial process the form or

' appearance of govemment documents, or the

(14),

simulation of a form or appearance ofa
teleoraphrc or emergency message :

Communicate wrth the debtor and represent or

. imply that the existing obligation of-the debtor

(15)

(16)

an

(18)

(2008)

may be or has been increased by the addition
of attorney fees, investigation fees; service
fees, or any other fees or charges.when in fact
such fees or charges may hot- legally ‘be added
to the emsnng obl1gat10n of such debtor

Threaten to take any act1on agalnst the debtor
‘which the l1censee cannot lega.lly take af the
time the threat 1s made B

Send any. telegram or make any. telephone calls
to a.debtor or-concerning a debt or’ for the
purpose of demanding. payment of a.claim or
seeking information about a.debtor, for which

.the charges are payable by the addressee or by

the person to. whom the call is made.

In any, matiner convey the'i 1mpressmn that the
licensee is vouched for, bonded to or by, or is
an instrumentality of the state of Washington
or any agency or aeparnnent thereof. -.- -

Collect of attempt to collect in add1t10n tothe
pnnmpal amourit of a claim any sum other o
than allowable interest, collection costsor

'handlmg fees expressly authonzed by’ statute

and, in'the case of stit, attomey s fees and ‘
taxable court costs. A licensee may collect or
attempt to collect collection costs and fees,
including contingent collectlon fees, as

authorized by a writtén agreement or contract,

between the licensee’s client and the debtor, in

the collection of a commercial claim. The

amourit charged to the debtor for collection
services shall not exceed tlnrty ﬁve percent of
the commercial claim. '

(19)

20)
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Procure from-a debtor or collect or attempt to
collect on. any written note, contract, -
stipulation, promise or acknowledgment under
which a debtor may be required to pay any
sum other-than principal, allowable interest,
except as noted in subsection (18) of this
section, and, in the case of smt attorney's fees
and taxable court costs. A

Upon notification by a debtor that the debtor

-d1sputes all debts arising from a series of

dishonored checks; automated clearinghouse

" transactions on a demand’ deposit account, or

otheér preprinted written instruments, initiate

.oral: contact with a debtor.more than one time

in an attempt to collect from:the debtor debts

..arising from the.jdentified series-of dishonored

_ checks, automated clearinghouse transactions

on a demand deposit account, or other
preprinted written instruments when:
(4) Within the previous'one hundred eighty
days, in response to the licensee's attempt
to‘collect the: 1mt1a1 debt ass1gned to the
licensee and arising from the ideiitified -
series of dishonored checks, automated
clearinghouse transactions on a-demand
‘deposit account, ‘or ‘otherpréprinted:
- written instruments; the debtor in‘writing
" notified the licensée'that the debtor's-
checkbook or other series ‘of preprinted
- written mstruments was.stolen or
fraudulently. created, N

. (b) the licensee has received from the debtor a
certified copy of a‘police-réport

" 'referencing the theft or vﬁ'a’udulent creation

- ‘of thé‘checkbook; automiated
-clearmghouse transactions on-a demand
“deposit account, or series of preprinted
‘written instruments;, :

(c) in the written nictification'to the licensee or
~in the'police repoit, the debtor identified
- the financial institution where the account -
was maintained, the account number, the
magnetic ink character recognition
number, the full bank routing and transit
number, and the.check numbers.of the
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RCW 19.16.260 Licensing prereduisite to suit.

No collection ageticy or out-of-state collection
agency may bring or maintain an action in any court
of this state involving the collection of a claim of
any third party without alleging and proving that he
or it is duly licensed under this chapter and has =
satisfied the bonding requirements hereof; if *
applicable: PROVIDED, Thatin any case where -
judgment is to be entered by default, it shall not be
necessary for the collection agency or out-of-state
collection agency to prove such matters.

A copy of the current collection agency license or
out-of-state collectron agency 11cense certified by
the director to be a true and’ correct copy of the -
original, shall be prima facie evidence of the'
licensing and bonding of such collection agency or
out-of-state collection agency as required by this
chapter. [1994 c 195.§.8; 1971 ex.s,.¢253-§ 17.,}

RCW 19.16.270 Presumptron of vahdlty of
assignment. .

In any action brought by hcensee to collect the .

claim of his.or its. customer the a551gnment of the' ,

claim to hcensee by h15 or its customer shall be
conclusively presumed valid, 1f the- assrgnment is-

filed in court with the complaint, unless obJectlon is

made thereto by the debtor in a written answer or in
writing:five days or-mote: prior fo-trial.- r1971 exis. ¢
253 § 18.] . 4

RCW 19.16.280 Board created-Composrtron of
board--Qualification of members..

There is hereby créated aboard to be known and
designated as the "Washington state colléction
agency board". The board shall'consist of five’
members, one of whom shall be'the director and the
other four shall be appointed by the governor. The
director may delegate his duties as a board member
toa de51gnee from his department. The director or
his de51gnee shall be the executive ofﬁcer of the
board and its charrman ‘

(2008)
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At least two but no more than two members of the :
board shall be licensees hereunder. -Each of the
licensee members-of the board shall be actively
engaged in the collection agency business-at the
time of his appointment and must continue to be so
engaged and continue to be licensed under this
chapter during-the term of his-appointment or he
will be deemed to have resigned his position:
PROVIDED, That no individual may be a licensee
member of the board unless he has been actively
engaged as either an owner or executive employee . .
or a combination of both of a.collection agency

-business in this state for a period of not less than |

five yedrs immediately prior to his.appointment.

No board, member shall be employed by.or have any
interest in, directly or indirectly, as.owner, partner,

officer, director, agent, stockholder, or attorney, any.
collection agency in which any otherboard member

is employed by or has such an interest. .No:member

of the board other than the director or his des1gnee
shall hold any. other elective or appomt1ve state. or.
federa.l office: [1971 ex.s.6253.§ 19]

RCW 19 16. 290 Board—-Imtral members-- .
Terms--Oath--Removal. : .

The initial members of the board shall be named by
the governor within thirty days after January 1,

1972. At the first meeting of the board, the |
members appoitited by thé govemor shall d uCLCuLuue
by lot the period ‘of tirne from January T, 1972 that
each of them shall:serve, one: for one year; one for

- two years;.one for three years; and one for four

years.-In the event of a vacancy on-the board, the
governor shall appomt a successor for the/unexpired -
Term. . :

Each member-appointed by the. governor shall
qualify by taking the usual-6ath of a state officer,
which shall be filed with the secretary of state, and -
each member shall hold office for the termi of his-
appointment and until his-successor is-appointed
and qualified. Any member of'the board other than
the director or his designee may be removed by the -
governor for neglect of duty, misconduct,
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necessary for the welfare of the state, the
welfare of the public, and'the welfare and
pro gress of the collection: agency business.

(3) Upon request of the dlrector, confer and -
advise in matters relatmg to the adrmmstermg
of this chapter. :

(4) May consider and make appropnate
‘ recommendations to the d1rector in all matters
referred to the board :

(5) Uponrequest of the: dJrector confer with. and
 advise the ditector in the preparation of any',. -
rules to be adopted; amended;-or repealed. - -,

(6) May assist the ditector in the collection of -~
: such information and- data as ‘the director may
deem necessary to the proper adm1mstrat10n of

this chapter [2002¢c 86 § 267 1977 ex. s.c 194 § 2;
1973 Istex.s.c20 §8] - i

NOTES:
Effective dates -- 2002 c 86_ See note

following RCW 18.08.340.

. Part headings not law -- Severability -- 2002
c 86 See RCW 18 235 902 and 18.235. 903 )

RCW'19.16.390 Personal serv;lce of process 2
outsnde state.

Persenal service of any prc S" m an actrcn ur‘der _
this chapter may be made upon any. person outs1de
the state if such person has engaged in conduct in.
violation of this chapter which has had the 1rnpact in
this state which this chapter reprehénds. Such
persons shall be deemed:to have thereby submitted
themselves to the jurisdiction of the.courts of this. -
state within the meaning of RCW 4.28.180 and
4.28.185. A holder of an out-of-state collection
agency license is-deemed to have appointed the
director or the director's de51gnee to be the licensee's
true and lawful agent upon whom may be served
any legal process against that licensee arising or

. growing out of any violation of thls chapter [1994 ¢
195 § 9; 1971 ex.s. ¢ 253 § 30.]

(2008)
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RCW 19:16.410 Rules, orders, decisions, etc.

The board may adopt rules, make specific decisions,
orders, and rulings, including therein demands and

‘findings, and take other necessary action for the

implementation and enforcement of the board’s
duties under this chapter [2007 ©256 § 4; 1971 exss. ¢ ;
253 § 32.]

] .

RCW.19,16.420 Copy of this chapter, rules and
regulations available to licensee..

On or-about the first day of February in each yeat;
the director shall cause to be made available at
reasonable expense to a licensee a copy of this
chapter, a copy of the current rules and regulations
of the director, and’ ‘board, and such ther materials

as the director or board prescnbe [1971 ex8c 253§
33} : L

RCW 19 .16. 430 leatmns—-()peratmg agency
without a hcense—-Penalty-—Return of fees or -
compensation. :

(1) Any person who' knowmgly operates asa
collectwn agency ‘or-out-6f-state collection -
~ agency without alicense orknowingly aids-
~ and’abets such violation is punishable by a
- fine not exceeding five hundred dollars or by
 imprisonment. not exceéding one year or both..

(2) Any person who operates as a collection

- agency or out-of- state collection agency in the
state of Washington without a valid license
issued pursuant to this chapter shall not charge
or receive any fee or compensation on any
moneys received or-collécted while operating
without a license or on arny moneys received

or collected while operating with-a license but

* received or collected as a result of his or its- -

acts-as a collection'agency or out-of-state
collection agency while not licensed
hereunder. All such moneys collected or
received shall be forthwith returned to the
owners of the accounts on which the moneys
were paid. [1994.c 195§ 10; 1973 Ist ex.s. ¢ 20 § 6;
1971 ex.s. €233 § 34.] ,
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(b) Any governmental entity as described in
(a) of this subsection using a collection
agency may add a reasonable fee, payable

by the debtor, to the outstanding debt for
the collection agency fee incurred or to be
incurred. The amount to be paid for
collection services shall be left to the
agreement of the governmental entity and
its collection agency or agencies, but a
contingent fee of up to fifty percent of the
first one hundred thousand dollars of the
unpaid debt per account and up to thirty-
five percent of the unpaid debt over one
hundred thousand dollars per account is
reasonable, and a minimum fee of the full
amount of the debt up to one hundred
dollars per account is reasonable. Any fee
agreement entered into by a governmental
entity is presumptively reasonable.

(2) No debt may be assigned to a collection
agency unless:
(a) there has been an attempt to advise the |
debtor _
. (i) ofthe existence of the debt and

(ii) that the debt may be assigned to a
collection agency for collection if the debt
is not paid, and

(b) least thirty days have elapsed from the
time notice was attempted.

(3) Collection agencies assigned debts under this -

section shall have only those remedies and
powers which would be available to them as.
assignees of private creditors.

(4) For purposes of this section, the term debt
shall include fines and other debts, including
the fee required under subsection (1)(b) of this

_section. [1997c387§.1;1982¢c65§1.] .

NOTES:
Interest rate: RCW 43.17.240.

(2008)
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RCW 19. 16 510 Uniform- regulatmn of business
and professions act.’ .

- The uniform regulation of busmess and professmns

act, chapter 18. 235 RCW, governs unilicensed
practice, the i 1ssuance and demal of 11censes, and the
discipline of 11censees under thls chapter [2002c 86
§268] ‘ :

- g
RO F

NOTES
Effective dates — 2002 ¢ 86 See note
followmg RCW 18.08.340.

~ Part headmgs not law Severablhty 2002
c 86 See RCW 18.235.902 and 18.235, 903 ‘

RCW 19.16.900 Provisions cumulatxve—- N
Vlolatmn of RCW 19.16.250 deemed civil.

The prov1s1ons of thrs chapter shall be cumulatrve
and nonexclusive and shall not affect any other
remedy available at law: PROVIDED, That the
violation of RCW 19.16.250 shall be construed as .
exclus1ve1y c1v11 and not penal in nature [1971 ex.s. ¢
253§40] : R

RCW 19.16.910 Severability--1971 ex.s. ¢ 253.

If any section or provision of this act shall be
adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional such
adjudication shall not affect the validity of the act as
a whole, or any section, provisions, or part thereof
not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. [1971 ex.s.
c253 §41.] ’

RCW 19.16.920 Provisions exclusive—-Authority
of political subdivisions to levy business and

“occupation taxes not affected.

(1) The provisions of this chapter relating to the
licensing and regulation of collection agencies
and out-of-state collection agencies shall be
exclusive and no county, city, or other

- political subdivision of this state shall enact
any laws or rules and regulations licensing or
regulating collection agencies.
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COLLECTION AGENCIES AND REPOSSESSION SERVICES
Chapter 308-29 WAC

Related Revised Codes of Washmgton

Washmgton Admmlstratlve Code
308-29-010 Definitions. .

19.16.100 Definitions.

308-20-020 - Financial Statemen.

19.16.245 Financial statement.

308-29-025 What records must a licensee
' maintain at the licensed location?

19.16.230 Licensee—Business ofﬁce—
‘ Records 10 be kept

308-29-030 Do licensees have to notify the
‘ “director of changes in ownerslnp,
" officers, directors, or managmg
- -employees? o

308-29-045 Collection agency fees..

19.16.140 License‘—'Appﬁcaﬁon'—-Fees— i
- ; Exemptions. - :

308-29-050 Are licensees requlred to notify the

- director of lawsuits, Judgments etc.,.
involving the 11censee of its
eniployees?

19.16. 120 - Denial, revocation,. suspensmn of,
.or refusal to renew; license—Civil
: penalty———Grounds

| 308-29-060 'What are the licensees’ obhgatlons
‘ . - when tran.s_ferm_ag an interest in a
_collection agency? -

19.16.180 . :Ass1gnab1hty of hcense or branch

. office certificate.:!

. .:3_08,-2.9,-070 - Disclosure of rate of interest.

19.16.250(8)(c) Prohibited practices. :

308-29-080 : Does:a collection.agency have to V
notify the credit reporting agency
when the debt is satisfied?

19.16.250(9)(a). . Prohibited practices.

-308-29-090 ' Brief ad_]udlcatlve proceedings —
‘ ' ' When they can be used.

308-29-110 Conduct of brief adJudlcatlve
+ proceedings. :

308-29-120 - Appeal process for brief adjudicative
' proceedmgs

308-29-130 Objections to brief a'djudicative
‘ .proceedings.and conversion to
_ formal adjudicative hearings.

Disposition. of Sections iFOrn__Jerly Codified in this Chapter:

308-29-040  Collection agency—Fees. [Statutory Authority: RCW 43.24.085. 80-14-022 (Order 356), § 308-29-040,
- filed 9/25/80; Order PL.221, § 308-29-040, filed 11/5/75.]. Repealed by 83-17-031. (Order PL 442), filed .
8/10/83. Statutory Authority: 1983 ¢ 168 § 12. Later promulgation, see WAC 308—29 -045. o

308-29-100 Prehmmary record in brief adjudicative proceedings. [Statutory Authority: RCW.19.16. 410] “01-11-132, -
§ 308-29-100, filed 5/22/01 effective 6/22/01 ] Repealed by 07-17-145, filed .8/21/07, effective 9/21/07.

Statutory Authonty RCW 19.16.410.
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electronically or on other. retnevable
medium); and

(d) Collection agreements authorizing the
licensee to- collect debts or'a schedule.
listing all fees or charges to be charged to
the debtor or client‘

Accuracy, access1b1hty and retentmn of records:
All required records shall be accurately posted kept
up-to-date and kept at the address where the
collection agent is licensed to do business. Such
records shall be retained and available for
inspection by the director or the director’s
authorized representative during normal business
hours. The:collection agency shall provide copies
of required records upon demand by the. dJrector or
the director’s authorized representat1ve

(3) Licensee’s responsibilities: .

(a) The licensee:shall be'respoisible for the
- custody; safety:and the aceuracy of ‘entries
~“in‘all required records. The licensee
- retains this responsibility even'though
another person or persons assume the
duties of preparation, custody or..
recordmg

(b) The licensee shall obtaln cop1es of the
. Collection Agency Act (chapter 19.16.
RCW) and the rules 1mplement1ng the act
(chapter 308-29 WAC) andbe -

knowledgeable of these laws and rules u1 '

their most recent Vprelnn

WL Lo noviae Yeadlual,

(c) The licensee must ensure accessibility of
the:licensed locationr and:records-to the
- director or the director’s representative.
(4) *Administration of trust funds and client
property:’ , . : A
(a) A licensee who receives funds or.-moneys
. from any:-debtor, client or customer shall
" hold the flmds.-or-moneys. in trust for the
purposes of the agreement-and shall not
utilize such funds or moneys for the
benefit of the licensee or any person not
entitled to such beneﬁt :

(2008)

308-29-025

.(b). All funds or moneys received shall be
deposited into a federally msured bankmg
institution. - - - © -

(c) The trust bank account Will be in the
licensee’s name and identified as a trust
account

(@) Preauthonzanon of. regular dlsbursements
or. deductlons on an ongomg basis by
financial institutions is not perm1tted for
multiclient accounts.

(e) When a contract between .the licensee and
client expires, terminates, or.is.no longer
in existence, the licensee shall give a

. closing statement to'the client T
summarizing all receipts and payments :
‘'since the last statement'and shall returmn all
instruments-and ¢client property to the ‘
client within thirty days: after written’

-~ demand from the cl1ent oras spemﬁed in

. the ¢lient contract. " T .

[Statutory Authority: [RCW 19.16,410]. 01 -11-132, §308-

29-025,; ﬁled 5/22/01 effective 6/22/01 ]

WAC 308-29- 030 Do hcensees have to nohfy the
director of changes in ownershlp, officers, T
dlrectors, or managmg employees" B o

(1) Eachlicensee shall notify the directorin - -~
writing: _
a) Within ten business. days of any y change in:
its. ownershlp, » L -

(b) Within ten business days of any change in
officers, directors, or managing employees
of each office location. .

The notification shdll consist of reporting
the individual’s name; position, address
' and eﬁ'ectlve date of change ; '

2 If requested by the department each l1censee
shall notify the department in writing of any
additional information regardmg the change or
changes in subsection (1) of this section
within'ten‘days after the ma111ng of the
request.
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(3) The instrument by which the interest is
transferred shall be in wntmg, and shall
_ indicate: :

- (a) That the license or branch office certificate

granted.under chapter 19.16 RCW is not

" assignable or transferable, that the transfer
of the licensee’s interest in the business
does not include such license or certificate,
that the transferee of the interest must
apply for a license and/or certificate in
accordance with the law; and that the’
transferee of the interest mustnot act;

. assume to-act; or advertise as a-collection
agency or out-of-state collection agency as

~ defined:in chapter 19.16 RCW,-without
first having applied for and obtained a
license under that chapter

(b) Which party to the transac’uon bears
responsibility for payment to clients of
amounts due themn between- the date the
instrument is executedv ang _,'the effectlve '
date of the transfer; o

(c) Which party to the transaction bears
iresponsrblhty for maintaining and:
preserving the records of the collection -
. agency or out-of-state collec’uon :agency.as
prescribed in RCW 19; 16 230 and, these '
rales; .. !

' (d) ‘Whether the transfer of interest mcludes
the right to use the businessiame or trade

name of'the collection agency or out-of-
state collection agency;. and

(¢) Which party to the: transactron bedrs
responsibility for prov1d.1ng written notice
of the transfer to the clients of the

“collection agency who have open accounts-_,.

with the collection agency or out—of—state
collection agency

(4) The l1censee must provrde the director a copy
of the instrument transfemng the licehsee’s.

interest signed by all parties to the transactlon .

and shall indicate the effect1ve date of the
transfer.

[Statutory Authonty [RCW 19,16, 410] 01-11-132 § 308-29-
060, filed 5/22/01, effective 6/22/01; 87-11-064 (Order PM

(2008)
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653), § 308:29-060, filed 5/20/87; 86-14-051 (Order PM 602),

. §308-29- 060 filed 6/27/86; 79-06- 084 (Order PL-306), §

308-29- 060 ﬁled 6/1/79 .

WAC 308-29 070 Dlsclosure of rate of mterest

Whenever a collection-agency is requrred pursuant
to RCW 19.16.250 (8)(c) to disclose:to the debtor
that interest charges; are-being added to:the original
obligatior, the collection agency must also disclose
to the debtor: the rate of mterest ‘The rate of interest
cannot exceed the:-legal maximum rate estabhshed
in chapter. 19 52 RCW. o :

[Statutory Authority: [RCW 19.16.410]. 01411132, § 308-
29-070, filed 5/22/01, effective 6/22/01; 87-11-064 (Order PM

653), § 308-29-070, filed 5/20/87; 86-14-051 (Order PM 602),
§ 308-29-070, filed 6/27/86: 1

WAC 308-29- 080 Does a coilectlon aéency have
to notify the credit reporting agency_when_the_
debt is satisfied?

If a collection agency informs a ,cred;t-_-reportm g
agency of the existence-of a,claim; the collection
agency.shall, promptly notify,the credit-reporting

" agency that the claim has been satisfied. In the

absence of other applicable law, {‘promptly” shall
mean within forty-ﬁve days aﬁer sansfacnon of the
claim,

[Statutory Authonty [RCW 19.16. 410] 01- 11 132 § 308-
29-080, filed 5/22/01, effective 6/22/01; 87- 11-064 (Order
PM653), § -‘3’08-29-080, filed 5/20/ 8.?_/?;7'86‘- 14-051 (Ordeér PM
602), § 308-29-080, filed 6/27/86.] - .

WAC 308-29 090 Brief ad]udlcatrve proceedmgs

— When they can be used.

(1) The board-adopts 'RCW"34;'0_5 :482-through
34.05.494 for the administration of brief
adjudicative proceedings ¢onducted at the
discretion of the board. Brief adjudicative
proceedings can be used in place of formal
adJud1cat1ve hearings whenever the-board
issues a statement of charges, notice of i intent

to issue a cease and desist order, or temporary
cease and desist order. allegmg that an
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overturns the brief adjudicative proceeding
decision. The board's decision, also called an order,
is mailed to you. This section does not apply to
brief adjudicative proceedings conducted by the
board through WAC 308-29-090(2).

Statutory Authority: [RCW 19.16.410]. 07-17-145, § 308-29-

120, filed 8/21/07, effective 9/21/07; 01-11-132, § 308-29-
120, filed 5/22/01, effective 6/22/01.]

WAC 308-29-130 Objections to brief
adjudicative proceedings and conversion to
formal adjudicative hearings. -

. (1) At Jeast five days before the scheduled brief
adjudicative proceeding, any party to the
proceeding, including the board, may file a
written objection to resolution of a matter by a
brief adjudicative proceeding and may request
that a matter be converted to a formal
adjudicative hearing. Upon receiving a timely
‘written objection, the presiding officer shall
determine whether the matter should be
converted. Regardless of whether any party
files a timely objection, the presiding officer
may convert any brief adjudicative proceeding
to a formal adjudicative hearing whenever it -
appears that a brief adjudicative proceeding is
insufficient to determine the issues pendmg
before the board.

(é) In determining whether to convert a

proceeding, the presiding officer may consider

the following factors: ‘

(2) Whether witness testimony will aid the
presiding officer in resolving contested
issues of fact;

(b) Whether the legal or factual issues are

sufficiently complex to warrant a formal
. adjudicative proceeding, including

whether there are multiple issues of fact or
law; '

(c) Whether a brief adjudicative proceeding
will establish an adequate record for
further board or judicial review;

(d) Whether the legal issues involved in the
proceeding present questions of legal

(2008)

308-29-120

significance or are being raised for the first
time before the board;

(e) Whether conversion of the proceeding will
cause unnecessary delay in resolving the
issues; and

() Any other factors that the presiding officer
-deems relevant in reaching a
determination.

[Statutofy Authority: [RCW 19.16.410]. 67-17-145, § 308-29-
130, filed 8/21/07, effective 9/21/07.}

)
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(vi)Court reporters under !c':hapter_-l 8.145
RCW; '

(vii)Driver training schools and instructors
under chapter 46. 82 RCW

‘ (v111)Employment agenc1es under -

chapter19.31 RCW; -

(ix)For hire vehrcle operators under chapter
46.72RCW; |

(x) Limousines under chapter 46,72A RCW;
(xi)Notaries public under chapter 42.44 RCW;

(xii)Private mvestrgators under chapter 18.165

RCW;

(x1u)Profess1onal boxmg, martlal arts and
wresthng under chapter 67 08 RCW

(x1v)Real estate apprausers under: chapter
18.140 RCW; i

(xv)Real estate brokers and salespersorxs under
chapters 18.85 and 18. 86 RCW

(xvi)Security guards under chapter 18 170
RCW;

(xvii)Sellers of travel under chapter 19.138
RCW; ‘ o

(xvrn)Trmeshares and trmeshare salespersons
under chapter 64 36 RCW and - :

(xrx)Whrtewater nver outﬁtters under chapter
79A.60 RCW ' :

(b) The boards and commissions having
authority under this chapter are as follows:

"i

(i) The state board:of registration for " .

architects establrshed m. chapter 18. 08

- RCW;

‘ (iiy The cemetery board estabhshed in chapter

(2008)

68.05 RCW; '

(iii) The Washrngton state collectron agency

board established in chapter 19.16 RCW;

(iv) The state boatd of regrstratron for
professional engineers’and land $urveyors
established in chapter 18. 43 RCW
governing licenses issued under chapters
18.43 and 18.210 RCW;

€)

18.235.020

(v) The state board of fu.neral directors and
embalmers estabhshed in chapter 18 39
RCW; :

_(vi) The state. board of registratron fOr

landscape architects estabhshed in chapter
. 18. 96 RCW; and . .

(vii)The state geologlst lrcensmg board
_ estabhsh_e,d, in chapter 18 220RCW

In addition to the authority to discipline
license holders, the disciplinary authority may
grant or deny licenses based on the conditions
and criteria established in this chapter and the
chapters specified in subsection (2) of this
section. This chapter also. govems any-

| ‘mvestlgatlon, heanng, or- proceedmg relatmg

NOTES: -

‘to-denial of licensure or issuance of a license
_ condmoned on the apphcant's comphance

with an order entered under RCW 18 235 110

. by the dlSClphnary authonty [2007 c 256 §12;
2002 c'86 § 103.] L .

Effective date “ 2006 c 219 See: note

followmg RCW 46.82. 285 oy

RCW 18.235.030 Dlsc1phnary authonty -
Powers .

The dlsc1p]mary authonty has the power:to:

1

@)

Adopt, amend, and rescind rules as necessar,y ;
to-carry out the purposes-of this chapter;
including, but not limited to, rules regardmg
standards of profess1ona1 conduct and - -
practice; - e - ;

Investigate comprarnts or reports of _
unprofess1onal conduct’ and ‘hold heanngs as

»provrded in this chapter o
3)

Issue subpoenas and: admmrster oaths in-
connection with any mvestrgatron heanng, or
proceedmg held under this chapter }

Take or cause depos1t1ons to be taken and use
other d1scovery procedures as needed ilan
investigation, heanng, or proceedrng held
under this chaptér;

[Ch. 18.235~ page 28]



3 To establish fees to be paid for witnesses,
expert witnesses, and consultantsused in
any investigation or adjudicative
proceedings as authorized by RCW
34.05.446. [2007 ¢ 256 §'13;2002 ¢ 86 § 105.]

RCW 18. 235 050 Statement of charges -=
Hearing. C

(1) Ifthe d1sc1p11nary authonty determines, upon
investigation, that there is reason to believe
that a license-holder or applicant for a license
has violated RCW.18.235.130.or-has'not met a
minimum eligibility criteria for licensure, the
disciplinary authority may-prepare and serve
the license holder-or applicant a statement of
charge, charges, or intentito deny. A notice
that the license holder or applicant may °
request a hearing to contest the charge,
charges; or intent to deny imust accompany the
statement. The license-holder or applicant
must file a request for a‘hearing withi the
disciplinary authority within twenty days after
being served the statement:of charges or:
statement of intent to deny, The failure. to
request a hearing. constitutes a default,
‘whereupon the d1sc1p1mary authority may
enter a declslo_nvon thezfac__ts avallab_le to it.

(2) Ifalicense holder or applicant for a licerise

* requests a-hearing, the disciplinary authority
must fix the time of the heédring as scon &as
convenient, but not-earliet than thirty days

after the service of charge, charges, or intent

to deny. The disciplinary authority may hold a

hearing sooner than thirtyidays only: if the
diseiplina.ry authority has issued a summary
suspension or summary restnctmn [2007 €256
§ 14; 2002c86§106] ' :

RCW 18.235.060° Procedures governing
adjudicative proceedmgs '

The procedures governing ad_]ud1cat1ve proceedings
before agencies under chapter 34.05 RCW, the .
administrative procedure act,-govern all-hearings
before the discipliniary authority. The disciplinary
authority has, in addition to-the powets and duties -

(2008)

18.235.040

set forth in this chapter, all of the powers and duties

* under chapter 34. 05 RCW, which include, without

limitation, all powers relating to the administration
of oaths, the receipt of evidence, the issuance and
enforcing of subpoenas, and the taking of
depositions. [2002 c86.§107.]

RCW 18.235.070 Prevmus demal revocatlon, or
suspension of hcense

The. department :$hall not issue a- hcense to any
person whose license has been-previously demed
revoked, or suspended by the d1$c1p11nary authority:
for that profession or business, except in conformity
with the terms and conditions of the certificate or
order of denial, revocation, or suspension, or in _
conformity:with any order of reinstatement issued: -
by the disciplinary authority, or in accordance with -
the final judgment in any proceeding for review

instituted under thrs chapter {2002 ¢ 86 § 108, ]

RCW 18.235. 080 Orders

An order pursuant to proceedmgs authonzed by this. .
chapter, after due notice and findings in accordance
with this chapter and chapter 34.05 RCW, or an
order of summary suspension éntered under this
chapter, takes-effect immediately upon its being
served. The final order, if appealed to the court,
may not be stayed pending the - appeal unless the
disciplinary authority or court to which the appeal is
taken enters an order staying the order of the
disciplinary authority, which stay-shalliprovide for
terms necessary to protect the public.. [2007 ¢ 256 §
15;2002 ¢ 86 § 109.]

ot

RCW 18.235.090 Appeal - -

A person whohas been disciplined or has been

denied a license by a disciplinary: authority may -

appeal the decision as provided in chapter 34.05 k
RCW. [2007 ¢ 256 § 16;2002 ¢ 86 § 110] i
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may enforce the order for payment in the superior. .
court in the county in which the hearing was held." :
This right of enforcement is in addition to any other
rights the disciplinary authority may have as to any
licenisee ordered to pay a fine but.may notbe .
construed to limit a licensee's ability to seek Jud1c1al
review under RCW 18.235.090, In any action for .
enforcement of an order of payment of a fine, the
disciplinary authority’s order is conclusive proof ¢ of
the validity of the order of a ﬁne and the terms of
payment [2002 c86§113.] = )

RCW 18 235, 130 Unprofessxonal conduct -- Acts
or conditions that constitute. '

~ The following conduct, acts, or conditions
constitute unprofessional conduct for:any license
holdetor apphcant under the: Junsdquon of tfus

- chapter: ~ : ey

1), The comumission of 4 any act mvolvmg m a1
turpitude, dishonesty, or corruptmn relating to
the practice of the:persons profession ot
operation of the person's business, whether the
act constitutes a crime-or not. At the
disciplinary hearing a certified copy of a final
holding of any-court of competent jurisdiction
is conclusive evidence of the conduct of the
license holder or-applicant upen whick a

conviction or the final holding.is'based. Upon

a conviction, however, the judgment and
sentence is conclusive evidence at the ensuing
dlsmplmary hearmg of the guilt of the license

- holder or applicant of the cnme described in
the indictment or mformatwn and of the
person's violation of the statute on wh.tch itis
based. For the purposes of this subsecnon
conviction mcIudes all instances in whlch a
plea of guilty or nolo contendere is the ba51s

. for the convictioni and 4l proceedings in
_.which the sentence has-been deferred or -

- suspended. Except as specifically provided by
law, nothing in this subsection abrogates the
provisions of chapter:9.96A RCW. However,
RCW 9.96A.020 does not apply to a person
who is required to register-as a'sex offender
under RCW 9A.44.130; '

(2008) .

@)

[©)

4)

)

©)

M

®
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Misrepresentation or concealinent ofa. -
material fact in obtaining a license orin
reinstatement thereof;

Advertising that is false, decept1ve .or

‘misleading; -

Incompetence, negligence, or malpractice that

--results in harm or damage to another that

creates an unreasofiable risk of harm. or .

damage to another

The:suspension, revocatlon or restnctlon of a
license to-engage in any-business-or.
profession by competent authority in any
state, federal, or foreign jurisdiction. A =
certified copy ‘of the order, stipulation,or
agreement is conclus1ve ev1dence of the
revocatlon, suspensmn, or restnctlon '

Failure to cooperate with the disciplinary
. .authonty in the course of an investigation,
aud1t or mspectlon authonzed by law by

- (&) Not furnishing any papers or documents

-requested by-the dlsclphnary authority;

(b) Not furmshmg in wntmg af explanation
covering the matter containedina -
complaint when requested by the *

- disciplinary authonty, ;

(c) Notresponding to a subpoena 1ssued by
the dlsc1p11nary authonty, whether i or not
the rec1p1ent ‘of the subpoena isthe -
acct.sed in the proceedr..g, or | e

(d) Not prov1d1ng authonzed access, dunng i
- ‘regular-business-hours, to representatives
. of the-disciplinary authorlty conducting an

. investigation, inspection, or audit at

‘ -facilitjes utilized by the license holder or
. ‘applicant; .. o

Failure to comply with'an order 1ssued by the
“disciplinary authority; . : : '

* Violating any: of the proyisions of this chapter-
- or:the chapters specified i RCW - :

18.235.020(2) or any rules made by the
disciplinary authority under the chapters
specified in RCW 18.235.020(2);
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The person to-whom such a notice is issued -
may request an adjudicative proceeding to - .
contest the allegations. The notice shall
include a brief, plain statement of the alleged
unlicensed activities, act, or practice

~ constituting a v101at10n of this chapter or the

3.

chapters specified i in RCW 18.235. 020(2) ora
rule adopted or.order 1ssued under those = .
chapters. The request for heanng must be filed
within twenty days after service of the notice
of intent to issue a cease and desist order. The
failure to request a:hearing constitutes.a - : .
default, whereupon the disciplinary authority: :
may enter 2 permanent cease and desist order,
h1ch may include a crv11 ﬁne All

proceedmgs shall be ¢onducted in accordance
with chapter 34.05 RCW.

If the dlsc1p11nary authonty rnakes afinal
determination that a person has engaged oris
engaging in unhcensed practice or 0 her.act or
pract1ce constltutmg a v101a1:10n of th15 chapter

.....

1ssued under those chapters the dJsc1p11nary

-authority may issue a permanent cease and

desist order. In addition, the dJsclplmary

- -authority may impose:a ¢ivil fine.in an-amount

(6)

- (2008)

not exceéding orie thousarid:dollars for each
day upon which the person engaged:in the
unlicensed practice'ofa profession or -
operation of a business for which a hcense is
required by one or more of the chapters _
specified in RCW-18.235:020. The proceeds
of such a fine shall be. depos1ted in therelated:
program account. - ; v ,

The dlsc1p1mary authority may issue a
temporary cease and deslst order if a person is
engaged or is-about to engage in unlicensed
practice or other act or pract1ce constltutmg a
violation of this chapter or the chapters
specified in RCW 18.235.020(2)-ora rule . -
adopted or order issued under those chapters if
the disciplinary authority makes a written
finding of fact that the public interest will be
irreparably harmed by delay in issuing an
order. The person receiving a temporary cease

-and desist order shall be provided an

9

18.235.150

opportunity for a prompt hearing. ‘A temporary

cease and desist order shall remain in effect

until further order of the disciplinary
authority. The failure to request a prompt.or
regularly scheduled hearing constitutesa . . ..

- .default, whereupon the disciplinary authority -

may enter a.permanent cease and desist order,
which may include a civil fine.

The ¢ cease and des1st order is conclusive proof
of unllcensed pract1ce or other act or practice

- constituting a vrolatlon of this ¢hapter or the -

- (8

®

chapters specified in RCW 18.235.020(2) or a*

rule adopted or order issued under those = ~*
chapters and may be enforced under RCW
7.21.060. This method of enforcement of the
cease and desist ‘order or'civil fine may be
used in addition to, or as an alternative to; any -
provisions.for enforcement-;of;agency orders. :
set out’in.chapter 34.05:.RCW..- :

“The attorney general, 4 ‘county prosecutmg
_attorney, the director, a board or commission, -

or any person may, in accordance with the
laws of this state govermng mjunctlons

' mamtaln an action 1n the" name of the staté of 8

Washingtdn to ‘enjoin any person pract1c1ng a
profession or business without a license for =
which:a license is-tequired by.the chapters . -
specified in'RCW 18:235.020. All fees, fines, -

- forfeitures;-and penalties.collected or: assessed.

by a:court because.of a-violation of this. .

* section-shall be. deposited-in:the related .- ..
‘ program account T

The civil rernedles in this sedtion do not 11m1t
the ability to pursue ¢riminal prosecution as
authorized in any of the acts specified in RCW
18.235.020 nor do the civil remedies limit any
criminal sarictions.” [2007'¢ 256 §20; 2002 c 86 §
116.] . .

RCW 18.235.160 Violation of injunction --
Contempt of court -- Civil penalty. .

A person or business that violates an injunction
issued under this chapter may be found in contempt
of court under RCW 7.21.010. Upon a finding by a
court of competent jurisdiction that the person or

* [Ch. 18.235 - page 34]



18.235.902

RCW 18.235.902 Part headings not law -- 2002 ¢
86. )

" Part headings used in this act are not any part of the
law. [2002 c 86 § 402.]

RCW 18.235.903 Severability -- 2002 c 86.

If any provision of this act or its application to any
person or circumstance is held invalid, the
remainder of the act or the application of the
provision to other persons or circumstances is not
affected. [2002 c 86 § 404.]

(2008) . - _ [Ch. 18.235 — page 36]



